ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 19, 2007
1: 06 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Carl Gatto, Co-Chair
Representative Crai g Johnson, Co-Chair
Representative Vic Kohring
Represent ati ve Bob Roses
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son
Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative David Guttenberg
Representative Scott Kawasaki

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l menbers present
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough
Representati ve M ke Doogan
Senator Lyda Green

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 177
"An Act relating to the Alaska Gasline Inducenent Act;
establishing the Alaska Gasline [Inducenment  Act mat chi ng
contribution fund; providing for an Al aska Gasline |nducenent
Act coordinator; nmaking conform ng anendnments; and providing for
an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 177

SHORT TITLE: NATURAL GAS Pl PELI NE PROJECT
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

03/ 05/ 07 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 05/ 07 (H) &G, RES, FIN

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- April 19, 2007



03/ 06/ 07
03/ 06/ 07
03/ 08/ 07
03/ 08/ 07
03/ 13/ 07
03/ 13/ 07
03/ 13/ 07
03/ 15/ 07
03/ 15/ 07
03/ 15/ 07
03/ 19/ 07
03/ 19/ 07
03/ 19/ 07
03/ 20/ 07
03/ 20/ 07
03/ 20/ 07
03/ 21/ 07
03/ 21/ 07
03/ 21/ 07
03/ 22/ 07
03/ 22/ 07
03/ 22/ 07
03/ 23/ 07
03/ 23/ 07
03/ 23/ 07
03/ 24/ 07
03/ 24/ 07
03/ 26/ 07
03/ 26/ 07
03/ 26/ 07
03/ 27/ 07
03/ 28/ 07
03/ 28/ 07
03/ 28/ 07
03/ 28/ 07
03/ 28/ 07
03/ 28/ 07
03/ 29/ 07
03/ 29/ 07
03/ 29/ 07
03/ 30/ 07
03/ 30/ 07
03/ 30/ 07
03/ 31/ 07
03/ 31/ 07
04/ 02/ 07
04/ 02/ 07

HOUSE RES COW TTEE

IIIIITTTITITTITIIIITIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIILL

O&G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
-- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

&G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
-- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

0&G AT 3: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&G)

O&G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&G)

O&G AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&G)

&G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O8G)

O&G AT 5: 30 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O8G)

&G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O8G)

O&G AT 8: 30 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O8G)

O&G AT 1: 00 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
-- Public Testinony --

&G AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O8G)

&G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
O&G AT 7:30 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&G)

O&G AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&G)

O&G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&G)

O&G AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&G)

O&G AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124
-- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

O&G AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

- 2- April 19,



04/ 02/ 07 (H M NUTE( O&G)

04/ 03/ 07 (H &G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
04/ 03/ 07 (H Moved CSHB 177(0&G5 Qut of Conmmttee
04/ 03/ 07 (H M NUTE( O&G)

04/ 04/ 07 (H &G RPT CS(0&G) NT 3DP 2NR 2AM
04/ 04/ 07 (H DP: RAMRAS, DOOGAN, OLSON
04/ 04/ 07 (H NR: SAMUELS, KAWASAKI

04/ 04/ 07 (H) AM DAHLSTROM KOHRI NG
04/ 04/ 07 (H &G AT 8:30 AM CAPI TCL 106
04/ 04/ 07 (H -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

04/ 05/ 07 (H) 0%G AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
04/ 05/ 07 (H -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

04/ 10/ 07 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124
04/ 10/ 07 (H Heard & Held

04/ 10/ 07 (H M NUTE( RES)

04/ 11/ 07 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124
04/ 11/ 07 (H Heard & Held

04/ 11/ 07 (H M NUTE( RES)

04/ 12/ 07 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124
04/ 12/ 07 (H Heard & Held

04/ 12/ 07 (H M NUTE( RES)

04/ 13/ 07 (H RES AT 1:00 PM BARNES 124
04/ 13/ 07 (H Heard & Held

04/ 13/ 07 (H M NUTE( RES)

04/ 14/ 07 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124
04/ 14/ 07 (H Heard & Held

04/ 14/ 07 (H M NUTE( RES)

04/ 16/ 07 (H) RES AT 1:00 PM BARNES 124
04/ 16/ 07 (H Heard & Held

04/ 16/ 07 (H) M NUTE( RES)

04/ 17/ 07 (H) RES AT 1:00 PM BARNES 124
04/ 17/ 07 (H Heard & Held

04/ 17/ 07 (H) M NUTE( RES)

04/ 18/ 07 (H) RES AT 1:00 PM BARNES 124
04/ 18/ 07 (H Heard & Held

04/ 18/ 07 (H) M NUTE( RES)

04/ 19/ 07 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR HOLLI' S FRENCH

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:

Presented information on the Al aska State

Senate's version of the Alaska Gasline |nducenent Act and
answer ed questi ons.
HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 3- April 19, 2007



SENATOR LESI L MCGQUI RE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on the Al aska State
Senate's version of the Alaska Gasline |Inducenent Act and
answer ed questi ons.

DON BULLOCK, Attorney

Legi sl ative Legal Counsel

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services

Legi sl ative Affairs Agency

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions and explai ned possible
| egal issues relating to the Al aska Gasline | nducenent Act.

SENATOR Bl LL W ELECHOWSKI

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on the Al aska Senate's
version of the Al aska Gasline |Inducenent Act.

LARRY OSTROVSKY, Chief Assistant Attorney Ceneral

St at ewi de Secti on Supervi sor

Ol, Gas & Mning Section

Department of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned possible |egal issues associated
wth HB 177.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR CARL CGATTO called the House Resources Standing

Conmittee neeting to order at 1:06:17 PM Representati ves
Gatto, Johnson, Seaton, Roses, Edgnon, Kawasaki, Kohring, and
Wlson were present at the call to order. Representati ve
Gut tenberg arrived as t he nmeeti ng was in pr ogr ess.

Representati ves G uenberg, Fairclough, and Doogan, and Senator
G een were al so present.

HB 177- NATURAL GAS PI PELI NE PRQJECT

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of SB 104.]
1:06: 31 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 177, "An Act relating to the Al aska Gasline

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- April 19, 2007



| nducenent Act; establishing the Alaska Gasline I|nducenent Act
mat ching contribution fund; providing for an Al aska Gasline
| nducenent Act coordinator; mnmaking conform ng anmendnents; and
providing for an effective date." [Before the commttee was CSHB
177( 080 . ]

1: 07: 18 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO explained that the goal of today's neeting is to
conpare and understand the differences between the House and
Senate versions of HB 177, the Al aska Gasline |nducenent Act
(AG A).

1: 09: 35 PM
SENATOR HOLLIS FRENCH, Alaska State Legislature, expressed

support for the decision to request nenbers of the Al aska State
Senate to address the nenbers of the Alaska State House

regarding this very inportant bill at this stage in the process.
He first addressed the provision in AJGA that allows for a 10-
year freeze on gas production taxes. He explained that the
basic structure is set forth on page 22, lines 9 through 16 of

cormmittee substitute (CS) for SB 104 (JUD), 25-GS1060\0,
Bul | ock, 4/18/07, (Version O. The 10-year limtation to the
exenption is described on page 22, line 17. As proposed in
AG A the tax rate is set at the beginning of open season, and
applies for a 10 year period beginning at the time the pipeline
comences operations, he said.

1:12: 34 PM

SENATOR FRENCH referred to the Alaska State Constitution,
Article I X, section 1 which reads:

The power of taxation shall never be surrendered.
This power shall not be suspended or contracted away,
except as provided in this article.

SENATOR FRENCH told the conmittee this section was included in
the state's constitution because of a series of tax breaks that
had been granted by western state |legislatures to banks and
railroads in the late 1880s as a way to attract devel opnent.
Wen those legislatures tried to renove the tax limtations,
they were prevented from doing so due to provisions in the
federal constitution disallow ng inpairnent of contracts. As a
result, the tax breaks becane permanent, he indicated. Based on

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- April 19, 2007



this, the constitutions of prior states were anended and the
constitutions of new states were drafted to prohibit the
| egi slature from surrendering taxation authority. He opi ned
that there is probably no state in the union where it is nore
inportant to have this constitutional protection than Al aska
because there is no state in the union that is so dependent on
one industry.

1: 14: 29 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO asked whether the term sovereign is essential to
a determ nation of this issue.

SENATOR FRENCH suggested that the drafters of the Al aska
Constitution also recognized the need to entice new industry to

the state. Therefore, they added the nodifier "except as
provided in this article" to Article I X, section 1 of the Al aska
State Constitution. He explained that Article |IX, section 4

provides the constitutional authority for comonly known tax
exenptions, such as the senior property tax exenption and
provi sions which exenpt religious property from taxation. He
referred to the "crucial third sentence” which reads:

O her exenptions of |ike or different kind nay be
granted by general |aw

SENATOR FRENCH characterized the aforenentioned |anguage as the
crux of the provision authorizing the 10-year production tax
exenpti on.

CO CHAIR GATTO suggested that the words "like or different”
conprise 100 percent of everything.

1:16: 13 PM

SENATOR FRENCH agreed that there is no getting around the fact
that "this is as different as you can imagine." He stated that
while the context of this section is clearly about property
taxes, "different neans different and there's no point in
qui bbling over it." He noted that any tax exenption nust be
done by general law and offered his belief that "general |aw
means statute. He noted that statutes are subject to change
anytine by the |egislature. He set forth that one nust first
consider if the tax freeze is necessary to build the gas
pi pel i ne. The second consideration is whether the tax

[imtation can be put into law, and he offered that it should be

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- April 19, 2007



done by statute, since statutory law is subject to change by the
| egi sl ature.

1:17:57 PM

SENATOR LESIL MCQUI RE, Al aska State Legislature, conveyed that
during the Alaska Constitutional Convention the del egates
di scussed the Industrial Incentives Act, which she said was
"never challenged.” Therefore, it may be hard to determ ne how
the current discussions "will play out” in general |aw and
whet her "we can carve out these incentives," she opined. She
offered her belief that any tax exenption nust be one of
"general applicability" and cannot be crafted for one group, or
a "group out of a group.” Rather, it nust apply to an industry
or a group of individuals, she opined.

1:19: 39 PM

COCHAIR GATTO referred to a prior situation where the
| egislature nodified the law to allow a person to sit on a
former governor's cabinet. He offered that this had been a very
specific law directed towards "one post in the cabinet."”

SENATOR MCGQUIRE recalled that it may have been a change in |aw
to allow the governor to appoint special assistants and applied
to nore than one person.

SENATOR MCQUI RE addressed the limtation of one |egislature's
ability to bind a future |legislature. She threw out for
conmttee consideration the issue of how past |egislative
actions can affect a future legislature's ability to act in a
manner contrary to past |egislative actions.

1: 22: 48 PM

SENATOR FRENCH opined that the current policy dispute over the
proposed production tax exenption is whether the 10-year tax
exenption should be contractual. The current Senate Judiciary
Commttee version of AG A does not have the tax exenption as a
contractual provision because |egal counsel has advised that the
tax exenption is nore likely to be constitutional if not
contractual, he explained. QG her persons my present a
di fferent perspective, he inplied. He noted that prior |egal
research on the constitutionality of a "general |aw tax freeze"
also indicated that a contractual tax freeze would l|ikely be
unconstitutional unless the contract was subject to change.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- April 19, 2007



1:24: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether it was possible to change
the gas production tax from an annual tax to a 10-year tax wth
annual i zed paynents and thereby avoid constitutional issues. He
noted that the petroleum profits tax (PPT) is an annual tax,
with nonthly estinmated paynents.

SENATOR FRENCH opined it nmay be possible to structure the tax as
suggested, but said the real issue is whether the tax is subject
t o change.

SENATOR MCGUI RE opined that the tax, however structured, could
perhaps be crafted to apply to initial shippers as long as it
applied to all initial shippers. She offered that the type of
fiscal certainty desired by some parties may unduly restrict
future legislative actions. She rem nded the conmttee that
there is a constitutional restriction against dedicated funds,
therefore the legislature can only recommend that funds be
directed towards a certain cause, but cannot nandate it.

SENATOR FRENCH opined that the nost "legal way" to do this is to
anend the constitution, but he opined that a constitutional
anendnent was politically inpossible.

CO CHAI R GATTO stated he agreed that "we are not going to change
the constitution because that is the way it is done all over the
country,” and indeed all over the world - "with no certainty."”

1: 29: 02 PM

SENATOR FRENCH said he agreed with the aforenentioned comrent.
He said there is also an issue related to the separation of
powers between the |legislative and executive branch regarding
t he approval or disapproval of the licensee by the |egislature.
He explained that the Senate Judiciary Conmttee's current
approach to this issue is in AS 43.90.190 and provides that the
| egi sl ature shall propose a bill, rather than a resolution, to
approve the recomrended |icensee as a bill is nore binding. He
expl ained that the Senate Judiciary's version of AJGA is drafted
"in the affirmative" to provide for approval of the proposed
license within a 60 day period. He said there is an issue as to
whether it would be an intrusion on the power of the executive
branch for the legislature to "step in and say we [the
| egislature] have a role in this." He opined that it 1is
"probably not" an intrusion on the executive branch.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- April 19, 2007



1: 31: 04 PM

SENATOR MCGQUI RE opined that there is not only a constitutional

consi deration her e, but al so practi cal and politica
consi derati ons. She said that "in our committee" there is no
guestion that the nenbers believe "it is probably not
constitutional for certain elenents of the contract."” She al so

opined that the executive branch is limted in its ability to
enter into contracts that are "fundanentally legislative in
nature, - that require the taxation authority of our body." She
offered her opinion that it s preferable to keep the
| egi sl ati ve approval section in AGQA so as to "do it right" and
so as to increase the legislature's public accountability.

CO- CHAIR GATTO opined that the idea of having the |legislature
approve the contract is the preferabl e approach.

1: 34: 21 PM

SENATOR MCGQUIRE told the committee that state |egal counsel has
cautioned nenbers to be ever mndful of the precedents that they
set in AGA and to not |lose sight of the |legislature's equal or
co-equal role in the operation of governnent. Therefore, to not
require |egislative approval of the proposed |icensee may cast
future doubt on the legislature's rightful role in a contract
that incorporates fiscal terns, she opined. Furthernore, if the
| egi sl ature does provide a 10-year "lock in of rates" for the
gas pipeline, it is likely that the legislature wll receive
requests for simlar incentives from other industry groups, she
opi ned.

1: 35: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked whether parties will be entitled
to stop nmoving forward if there is Ilitigation regarding the
constitutionality of the 10-year lock-in of production tax
rates.

SENATOR FRENCH replied that AG A as submtted by the executive
branch has a severability clause so that if one part of the bill
is unconstitutional, the rest of AGA still goes into effect.
He said the prior admnistration's proposed Stranded Gas
Devel opnent Act (SGDA) was drafted so that the entire process
stopped if one part of the bill was found unconstitutional.

CO CHAIR GATTO asked if a shorter tax exenption provision would
be nore likely to be |egal.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -9- April 19, 2007



SENATOR FRENCH replied no.

SENATOR MCGUI RE recalled that a point had been nade by a prior
witness that "the closer you had to a nexus in your rationale,
the better you were on constitutional grounds.” Under this
approach, if one started the tax exenption "at first gas" for
the initial risky 10 years of the pipeline, then the nore |ikely
it would be that the court would uphold the constitutionality of
the tax incentive, she opined.

1:38: 20 PM

CO CHAI R JOHNSON asked who woul d have standing to challenge the
tax incentive provision of AGA

SENATOR FRENCH replied that any state citizen wuld have
standing to challenge the constitutionality of the tax incentive
provi si on. He went on to say that |egislative approval of the
license may reduce the grounds for legal challenge except
perhaps for "questions of constitutionality.” He said this is
i nportant because under AG A only one license will be issued

and if the award is based solely on the decisions of the
comm ssioners [of the Departnent of Revenue and Departnent of
Nat ur al Resources], disgruntled applicants would have the
ability to "do a full and thorough analysis" of the decision,
first before the admnistration, and then before the court.
However, he opined "that's not going to happen once we put our

stanp of approval on it" because it is "just like a bill." I1f a
bill is constitutional, the bill stays, he said. He said that
the 60-day period for approval wll provide an opportunity for
di sappoi nt ed i censee applicants to appear bef ore t he

| egi sl ature and argue agai nst the approval of the |license.

SENATOR MCGUI RE responded to a query by indicating that a change
in the CSSB 104 (JUD) had been made to section 5 to clarify that
it is the intent of the legislature that the comm ssioners issue
their first requests for license applications within 90 days
after the effective date of AG A

1:41: 45 PM
Representati ve Gruenberg asked how the timng provisions in AGA
for approval of the license would work in the event of a special

session, and whether the legislature would have adequate tine
for reviewin the event of a special session.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- April 19, 2007



SENATOR FRENCH replied that the issue has not yet been exam ned.
He opined that the administration and the conm ssioners would
likely carefully coordinate the issuance of the application with
the possibility of a special session. He agreed that there may
be 30 days between the call for a special session and the
commencenent of that session.

1: 43: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG observed that there may be sone tension
between the eventual contractual |anguage and the severability
clause in AG A

SENATOR MCGQUIRE agreed that there is an issue regarding a
party's contractual position if based on a legislative incentive
that ends up being disallowed after the party has entered the
contract. She indicated that |egal counsel would address this.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG agreed that the aforenmentioned point is
the issue, but that he also questioned whether section 7 on
severability makes it even nore difficult for a party to "nmake
t hat argunent.”

SENATOR MCGQUIRE replied that this admnistration's intent for
the severability clause is "exactly opposite of the fornmer
adm nistration's ... it is to say that you will be bound by the
terms." She noted that there is a process for abandonnent of
the project should it become uneconomc. A licensee could argue
that the lack of fiscal certainty has nade the project
uneconom c, she said. At that point, the state and the |icensee
woul d i nvoke the provisions of AS 43.90.240 to determne if the
project is unecononic, and thus subject to abandonnent.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered that there is "one avenue" for
a licensee to escape the contract terns, and that is "the route

of abandonnent.” He stated that it should be clear that the
| egal term abandonment is used in at |east three other contexts:
property, railroad, and infant abandonnent. He offered that the

definition in ADQA is unique and is the one that should apply.
1:48: 35 PM

DON BULLOCK, Attorney, Legislative Legal Counsel, Legislative
Legal and Research Servi ces, Legislative Affairs Agency,
remnded the commttee that Article 2 of AQdA concerns the
rel ati onship between the state and |icensee. Article 3 covers
resource inducenents and affects the resource producers, but is

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- April 19, 2007



really not an issue between the state and the licensee, he
opi ned. He characterized the inducenents "as a carrot” to get
"people to commt their gas to the licensed project” during the
initial open season. He said that |loss of the license incentive
does not necessarily have an effect on the |icensed project, but
may have an effect on the viability of the project and how the
Federal Energy Regulatory Conmission (FERC) would look at a
"conmmi tment that goes away because they feel that they |ost

their economc basis - for mking that commtnent."” He
responded to a coment by reiterating that the abandonnent
provision applies between the licensee and the state, not

between the producers and their commtnment to ship gas during
that first binding open season, he said. Even if a producer is
the licensee, the producer's obligations as a recipient of the
i nducenents differ from its obligations as a licensee, he
expl ai ned. He reiterated that abandonnment is contingent on the
project being found uneconomic and that there are enhanced
standards relating to the term "uneconomc" in the Senate's
version of the bill.

1: 51: 06 PM

SENATOR MCGUI RE opi ned that Representative Guenberg is "exactly
right.” The nmethod by which a controversy between the |icensee
and the state would be settled would be through the abandonnent
and arbitration process to determne whether the project is
unecononi c, she said. She said the bill section on "fiscal
certainty" was included to clarify that one of the elenents
necessary to nmake the project economc is the ability to get
firm transportation (FT) conmm tnents. She offered that a non-
producer |icensee could argue that the project has becone
uneconomic if the provision on fiscal certainty is ruled
unconstitutional . She said that she believes the provisions in
the bill on abandonnment provide a way to resolve this potentia
issue in a fair way.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether a producer non-licensee
could seek to wuse the abandonnent process were the tax
i nducenent provisions found unconstitutional.

SENATOR FRENCH replied no, that the commtnent to ship gas is
likely not effected by a change in the tax structure.

1: 53: 30 PM

MR. BULLOCK said that several different relationships are
covered under AGA wth a major portion of the bill covering

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- April 19, 2007



the relationship between the state and the |icensee. The
licensee is to pursue a pipeline project, but the project itself
is not part of AGQA he said. The licensee wll seek FT
commtments from shippers. The potential shippers will consider
whet her they can nake noney from the project, but those shippers
will have a relationship with the |icensee, not the state, he
said. The incentives provided by the state are a factor in the
project's econom cs, he said.

1: 55: 20 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO asked whether an owner could maintain a |egal
action against a party who reneges on an FT comm t nent.

MR. BULLOCK noted that if there are not adequate FT commtnments
to finance the pipeline, then the parties may consider whether
the project can be nodified or whether there are grounds for
abandonnent of the project.

1:56: 28 PM

SENATOR FRENCH noted that the abandonnent provisions are the
"circuit breaker" portions of the  bill because in the
abandonnment situation the process stops. He set forth that
under AG A as currently structured, "any two arbitrators
could essentially stop the gas pipeline." He indicated that it
will be made clear "that there is a right of appeal from that
decision,” through judicial review will be under the "abuse of

di screti on" standard.

1:57:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to Version O page 3, lines 16-
19, whi ch state t hat t he conmm ssi oners shal | adopt
adm nistrative procedures for any protest and appeal. He
contrasted this provision with the provision in Version O page
9, lines 11-13, whereby applicants nust comrit to waive their

right to appeal the issuance of the |license to another party and
asked whether this provision applies to admnistrative or
j udi ci al appeal s.

SENATOR FRENCH explained that the waiver in Version O page 9

lines 11-13 is an attenpt to forestall "legal wangling" in the
event no license has been issued. He indicated there are |ega

i ssues regarding the extent to which appeals can be restricted.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- April 19, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON sought to clarify whether the intent is to
wai ve the right to appeal to a court, or to waive the right of a
party to appeal under whatever admnistrative process 1is
established by the conm ssioners as set forth in Version O page
3. He offered that it appears that under Version O an appeal
process is established that cannot be used.

MR. BULLOCK said he was confused by the provisions regarding the
wai ver of appeals and suggested this area could use sone
clarification as to whether the waiver allows a judicial or
adm ni strative appeal. He noted that there my be a
constitutional basis for appeal should there be an abuse of
discretion by the commssioners when making the decision
regarding |license issuance.

SENATOR MCGQUIRE said that the admnistrative procedures
suggested in Version O page 3, cover the tinme period during
which the commssioners will be soliciting for applications.
However, the appeal waiver in page 9, subsection 16, covers the
period after an applicant has decided to apply for the I|icense.
She reiterated that the appeal provisions cover an applicant's
rights at the beginning of the process and their rights after
t he applicant has decided to subnmt an application.

2: 03: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON poi nted out that the |anguage on page 3 of
Version O covers not only the solicitation of the license, but
also the award of a license and he requested that the |anguage
be «clarified to state whether the waiver applies to
adm nistrative and court appeals or just to court appeals.

SENATOR MCGUI RE stated that she is aware of the intent of the
provision, and indicated that the |anguage would be clarified
"because they are different points in the process.”

2:04:41 PM

SENATOR MCQUI RE said that nodifications were being considered to
the sections on vouchers and arbitration. She noted that the
changes will require that Alaska law apply to any arbitration
pr oceedi ngs, and expl ai ned t hat Al aska contract | aw
interpretation incorporates consideration of an inplied covenant
of good faith and fair dealing. She said an "abuse of
di scretion standard" wll be added for the court to use for
revi ew. There w Il be further clarification of the term
"uneconom c," she said. She explained that a |icensee who

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- April 19, 2007



claimed the project was uneconomc nust first try to nodify the
contract. Failing that, the licensee could then proceed to
abandonnent proceedi ngs, she said. If the comm ssioners and the
| icensee agree that the project is uneconomc, then the project
can be abandoned, she expl ained. If the parties do not agree
that the project is uneconomc, then the parties can proceed to
arbitration. The arbitrators nust then use the criteria set
forth in AGA to determne if the project is uneconomc, she
expl ai ned.

CO- CHAIR GATTO said he hoped to conform the House and Senate
versions of AG A as nmuch as possi bl e.

SENATOR MCQUIRE referred to Version O page 18, line 6, and
explained that the term "preponderance of evidence," was
included as potentially fairer than the higher standard of
"clear and convincing evidence." She also noted that there had
been some controversy regarding whether the appointnment of an
AG A coordinator should be subject to legislative confirmation
and indicated that this issue was still being considered.

2:11: 35 PM

MR. BULLOCK expl ained that under the Al aska Natural Gas Pipeline
Act of 2004, a pipeline coordinator was appointed by the
President of the United States, with the advice and consent of
the United States Senate. He said that provisions in the Al aska
Constitution limt the positions that are subject to legislative
confirmation and that these provisions have been "quite narrowy
construed. " He explained that one provision concerns
comm ssioners and another refers to agencies such as the
Regul atory Commission of Alaska (RCA), which have quasi-
judiciary functions. He opined that the AG A coordinator
position does not seem to fall wthin those constitutional
provi sions, but based on his understanding of the duties of the
AG A commi ssioner, he indicated that appointnent "would not rise
to the level where the constitution would allow |egislative
confirmation."” He noted that there is no prohibition against
the governor wvoluntarily including the Ilegislature in the
appoi ntment process, but opined that a separation of powers
issue my arise if the Ilegislature does not confirm the
governor's choice for the AQ A coordinator. He offered that
| egal precedent supports the conclusion that there need not be
| egislative approval of any position lower than that of a
conmi Ssi oner.

2:13: 46 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 15- April 19, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked about conmercial arbitration
rules and Alaska arbitration proceedings. He noted that the
House Special Conmittee on G| and Gas version of AGA refers to
commercial arbitration rules.

SENATOR MCGUI RE opined that the conmercial arbitration rules and
the law of the state would likely work in concert.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said that CSHB 177(0&35 provides that
in the event of a disagreenent regarding whether the project is

unecononmi c, the "disagreenent shall be settled by arbitration
adm nistered by the American Arbitration Association under its
Commercial Arbitration Rules.™ Version O, page 17, line 23,
refers to arbitration admnistered by the American Arbitration
Associ ation "under the laws of this state.” He questioned
whet her the state has an adequate body of law in this area and
what the standards are under comercial arbitration rules. He

said he recalled testinony from last year that indicated sone
arbitration approaches provide advantages to certain parties.

SENATOR BI LL W ELECHOWSKI, Al aska State Legislature, opined that
it would be preferable to use Alaska law to the extent possible.

2:16: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that the American Arbitration
Association has a set of comercial arbitration rules that
parties can agree to abide by through contracts. He referred to
AS 09.43.010-595, which is the Uniform Arbitration Act, and
opined is the state law referred to. He expressed concern
regarding use of the term "abuse of discretion,” and noted that
there are very narrow grounds which allow a court to vacate or
nodi fy an arbitration award. He indicated that AS 09.43.500(a)
sets forth that arbitration awards can only be vacated if
procured by corruption, fraud or other undue neans, or if there
was evidence of partiality, msconduct, <corruption, or other
factors affecting the integrity of the decision. He offered his
belief that there is nothing in the Alaska arbitration statutes
"approachi ng abuse of discretion® and that using this standard
would be a mmjor change in state |aw He said that the term
"abuse of discretion" does not reflect a uniform standard, but
is interpreted differently depending on the area of |aw He
offered that in the event of an appeal, the nmeaning of the term
"abuse of discretion" would likely be a main point on appeal.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- April 19, 2007



MR. BULLOCK opined that the "abuse of discretion" standard is
general ly applicable in adm nistrative appeal s.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of fered his opinion that it is not that
sinmple, and opined that <courts give different degrees of
deference to adm nistrative agencies depending on the nature of
the admi nistrative decision. He characterized the determ nation
of "abuse of discretion" as a very conplex issue of appellate
I aw.

2:20: 49 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he argued against use of the term
"abuse of discretion" because the term has varying neanings. He
opined that the default provision should be the Al aska Uniform
Arbitration Act, which sets a fairly high standard. He argued
in favor of the term "under the laws of this state" in Version
O page 17, line 23. He said that typically arbitrators will
"apply any laws that they want,"” and opined that it is
appropriate to indicate that Al aska |aw should apply.

CO CHAI R GATTO observed that the pipeline may go through another
country and asked whether the limtation to Alaska |law could
cause di sputes.

MR. BULLOCK noted that the abandonnment issue concerns only the
state and the |icensee, not other parties.

SENATOR MCGUI RE suggested that one approach may be to reference
the Al aska statute governing the Uniform Arbitration Act.

REPRESENTATI VE  ROSES  recount ed hi s experience wth an
arbitration proceeding in which the arbitrator used precedent
from another jurisdiction rather than Al aska |aw. He recalled
that neither side was satisfied with the deci sion.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked what laws will apply to pipeline
issues for the portions of the project outside of the United
St at es.

2:25:16 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI replied that his understanding of AGA is
that the licensee will agree to abide by the terns of AQA for
the entire project. If there is a dispute regarding a portion
of the project in Canada and it is addressed in AGA then it
will be determned under the provisions of AGA | f those

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- April 19, 2007



provisions call "for Alaska law," then that is the law that
applies, he said.

SENATOR MCGQUI RE opined that if AGA is a contract, then sone
parties mght argue that federal l|aws apply. If AGA is a
general law, then Al aska | aw applies.

MR. BULLOCK reiterated that the abandonnment provisions only
concern the relationship between the state and the licensee. He
indicated that a determination that the project is unecononic
does not necessarily result in abandonnment of the pipeline, but
only the abandonnment of the relationship between the state and
the 1licensee. He opined that AGA is to "get a project
started,” it is not to define what the project is.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI responded to a question by explaining that
the bill had been anended to state that Alaska |aw applies
t hroughout the entire AG A process.

2:28: 43 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO asked for clarification as to whether Al aska |aw
applies to ADA or whether AG A determnes that Alaska |aw
applies to the contract.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI stated his understanding is that Al aska |aw
applies to AMA, and any disputes related to the contract or the
bill will "be disposed of by a court of conpetent jurisdiction
here in Al aska." He opined that issues related to Canadian
regulatory laws will be "prosecuted in the Canadian courts."

2:29: 27 PM
SENATOR MCGQUIRE said this issue was still being considered by
the Senate. She noted that Version O Section 6 concerns

expedited consideration of court cases and sets forth that the
legislative intent is for expedited consideration of cases
concerning pipeline issues as allowed by the Al aska Rules of
Court.

CO CHAI R GATTO asked what authority would authorize a party to a
contract to invoke expedited judicial review

2:31: 03 PM

SENATOR MCGQUIRE stated it is a statement of intent, and
indicated that there is a separation of powers issue which

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- April 19, 2007



restricts the ability of the legislature to direct other
branches of governnent.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that the |anguage of Version
@) Section 6, be broadened to include challenges and
interpretations of AGA as matters that the |egislature would
i ke revi ewed expeditiously.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI agreed that the aforenentioned point is
wel | taken. He stated that although Section 6 is not binding on
the judicial branch, the courts generally attenpt to expedite
i ssues |ike this because "they understand the inportance."

2:33:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG asked about the possibility of
requiring that challenges to AGA be filed within a certain tine
period and directly to the Al aska Suprene Court. He i ndicated
that a simlar approach was used during construction of the
Trans- Al aska Pi pel i ne System ( TAPS).

2:34: 20 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI replied that there is a section in Version

O section 420, page 24, which requires that constitutional
chal l enges to AJ A be brought within 90 days after issuance of a

i cense. He said there had been "quite a bit" of discussion
about the possibility of granting original jurisdiction to the
Al aska Suprene Court. He offered that if the goal is to

expedite resolution of issues under AG A, an appeal directly to
the Al aska Suprene Court nay not speed up the process as that
Court may have to appoint a special master to hold a hearing on
certain issues.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that a special naster could
be allowed to proceed under a different set of rules than the
normal appellate rules so as to expedite proceedings on a
chal l enge to AGQ A

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI expl ained that a special naster is soneone
sel ected by the Alaska Supreme Court to gather facts as directed
by the court. He said special masters are often retired judges
appointed to particular cases to help the Supreme Court, which
is not bound by the special master's findings.

2:37:16 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- April 19, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON opined that this comrittee nmay want to
consi der the voucher issue in its discussions of AGA as a way
to address approaches to avoid or address a failed open season.

2:37:57 PM
MR. BULLOCK explained that vouchers would allow a utility or

other party interested in buying gas to comit to firm
transportation (FT) capacity during the first binding open

season. After they acquire capacity, they can apply to the
comm ssioners for a voucher that describes the capacity that
party has conmitted to. The hol der of the voucher can then

negotiate wth the producers to enter a binding purchase
agreenent for gas produced on the North Sl ope. As part of the
agreenent, the voucher would be transferred to the producers so
that the voucher-holder <can <claim the royalty and tax
i nducenents, he explained. The goal is to broaden the potenti al
parties at the first binding open season, he opined.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether the voucher allows the
purchaser of gas on the other end to control the inducenents
that the state would be offering to a shipper.

MR. BULLOCK stated he believes there is a requirenment that the
sal e happen on the North Slope, before input into the pipeline.
O herwi se, the gas producer that "doesn't conmt" would not get
the benefit of the inducenents. The voucher provision allows
another party to commt to capacity on the pipeline wthout
having its own source of gas, he explained. That party then has
to purchase gas to fulfill their commtnent, and the voucher can
be offered to the producer as part of the negotiation, he said.

2:40: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his belief that previously the
upstream inducenents were available only to a party with FT
comi t ment s. He asked whether a party that wants to sell gas
but does not want to take on FT commtnents can still receive
i nducenents through the voucher system

MR. BULLOCK explained that the voucher gives the resource
i nducenent to a producer that did not bind thenselves to
capacity during the first open season.

2:40: 57 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- April 19, 2007



LARRY OSTROVSKY, Chief Assistant Attorney General, Statew de
Section Supervisor, GOl, Gas & Mning Section, Department of Law
(DOL) acknow edged that the producers have clainmed that they
need fiscal certainty to be able to enter FT commtnents for a
gas pi peline. He said that when considering AG A there was an
attenpt to accommopdate those concerns wthin the bounds of

constitutionality. He indicated that the provisions on fiscal
certainty were crafted so as to be simlar to the timng and
| anguage of the prior Industrial Incentive Act. He said that

the provision was intended to be limted to gas production taxes
and not to apply to a broad ranges of taxes as was done in the
SGDA. He opined that "there is a pretty good likelihood" that
the "provisions we put in would pass constitutional nuster,” and
in any event there is a severability clause in AGA so that the
process could continue despite sone uncertainty regarding the
constitutionality of the fiscal certainty provisions.

2:44:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON asked  whet her the admnistration's
position is that a 10-year freeze on production taxes provides
adequate fiscal certainty despite producer testinony that they
require fiscal certainty as to all applicable taxes.

MR. OSTROVSKY said it is not surprising in a situation like this
that any commercial party would desire the maxi mum degree of
certainty possible. He indicated that the state understands the
concern of the producers that even if one tax rate is frozen

another tax could still be raised. He offered that an effort
was made to accommodate the need for fiscal certainty, but noted
that it could only be "accommbdated to a certain extent,”
wi t hout going beyond the bounds of the constitution. He opi ned
that although "this mght not be everything" the producers
requested, it represents a determnation of what the drafters of
AG A thought the state could provide within the bounds of the
state constitution.

2:47:29 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if there is still any constitutiona
uncertainty if the 10-year provisions do not, in the opinion of

t he producers, provide fiscal certainty.

MR. OSTROVSKY answered that he cannot answer for the North Sl ope
conpanies, although he did note that the producers have
expressed a desire that tax rates be set on a greater nunber of
taxes for a greater period.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- April 19, 2007



2:48: 57 PM

MR. BULLOCK addressed the issue of |egislative approval of AGQA
and the applicable tinme period. He said that the time period
for approval my depend on the extent of the legislature's
revi ew. He noted that review could be as sinple as the
conmi ssioners presenting only their recommended |icensee, or a
nore conplex consideration of the other acceptable, but
ultimately rejected proposals. The scope of the review my
dictate the time required for approval, he expl ai ned.

CO CHAIR GATTO asked if it is likely that legislative review

will consist of an up or down vote.

2:50:11 PM

MR. BULLOCK replied that ultimately it is an up or down vote
because the legislature wll be presented wth only one
recommended |icensee. If the Ilicensee 1is rejected, the
commi ssioners have the discretion to start the process over and
request new applications, he said. He noted that in that

situation, the commissioners would have knowl edge of the
| egislature's grounds for rejection of the prior proposed
| i censee.

2:50: 44 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO asked if the conm ssioners could accept their
recommended licensee if time runs out before the |egislature has
time to finish the task of reviewng the conmm ssioners’
recomrendati on.

2:50: 56 PM

MR. BULLOCK stated that if a |licensee is not approved, there is
no licensee avail abl e. He went on to say that if the governor
and the comm ssioners believe the licensee has presented a
proposal that is in the best interests of the state, they nmay go
ahead and issue the license. In that instance, it may be up to

the court to determine if the license issuance under AGA is an
executive decision that does not require |legislative approval
He opined that another party with an interest in the pipeline
could also raise the issue and request that the |icense be
i ssued even if not approved by the | egislature.

2:51:55 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- April 19, 2007



CO CHAIR GATTO asked if the Ilegislature was restricted to
approving only a single |licensee.

MVR. BULLOCK explained that the conmssioners review the
applications and present to the legislature the |icensee whose
proposal they have determned to be in the best interest of the
state.

CO CHAI R GATTO asked how a potential l|iquefied natural gas (LNG
project would be considered in the event the legislature |ater
wants to have an LNG project.

2:52: 18 PM

MR. BULLOCK replied that would involve the provisions of AGQA
whereby the licensee is assured that the state will not give the
same benefits in AGQA to another party. He said that the Senate
version includes |anguage that defines a conpeting pipeline as
one that transports North Slope gas of 500 mllion cubic feet
(Mef) .

2:53:13 PM

CO- CHAIR JOHNSON asked whether the state nmay be subject to
damages under AG A should the state reduce taxes or royalties
after the pipeline contract has been awarded to a third-party
| i censee.

MR. BULLOCK opined that the state is not subject to danages as
long as it is not giving noney to the other pipeline or
providing incentives. He opined that "tax laws w Il change" and
that is alright.

2:54: 01 PM

CO CHAI R JOHNSON sought further clarification as to whether the
tax provisions of AG A are an incentive.

MR. BULLOCK replied that it is anbiguous and that discussions
surrounding both the House and Senate versions of AG A have
considered the issue of whether changes to laws or regul ations
could be deened to be a benefit or inducenment to a conpeting

pi pel i ne conpany. He noted that any change in tax |laws would
al so affect other parties that may be conmtting to the |icensed
proj ect . He went on to say it is critical to have the public

conveni ence and necessity issue, and if the state's project is

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 23- April 19, 2007



going forward it is possible that a finding could be made that a
second line is needed.

2:54:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked whether the state will have the
ability to evaluate a second project should one be proposed
prior to the commencenent of operations of the first pipeline.

MR. BULLOCK answered that the conpetition aspect would have to
be evaluated a little bit further. He opined that conpetition
takes place at both the intake and out put ends of the pipeline.
He said it is not clear wthout further consideration whether
delivery of gas to Valdez for shipnment to San Francisco would
necessarily be in conpetition with a gas pipeline that goes
overland to the Mdwestern United States.

2:56:15 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI stated that a definition of what
constitutes a conpeting project has been added to Version O
page 25, Ilines 2-4 which defines a conpeting natural gas
pi peline project as "a project designed to accommodate
t hroughput of nore than 500,000,000 cubic feet a day of North

Slope gas to market." Therefore, an LNG project with less than
500 Mcf per day would not neet the definition of "conpeting
natural gas pipeline project,” he explained. He stated the
intent of the provision was not to discourage devel opnment of a
spur line or a bullet line to provide natural gas to Al aska
residents and businesses. He offered that 500 Mcf is a good

nunber to provide natural gas for in-state use.
2:57:40 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI addressed a previous point as to whether
| onered taxes could be considered a preferential treatnent
extended to a conpeting project by noting that AS 43.90.440
describes preferential treatnment as actions done with the intent
to provide preferential royalty or tax treatnent for the purpose
of facilitating or constructing a conpeting natural gas

pi pel i ne. He indicated that actions that do not constitute
preferential royalty or tax treatnent are set forth in Version
O page 25, lines 5-12. He opined that if taxes were |owered

for everyone, that wuld not be considered inducing or
facilitating the construction of a natural gas pipeline project.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- April 19, 2007



CO- CHAIR JOHNSON expressed concern that the state could be
liable for damages if the tax changes all owed for devel opnent of
a conpeting project even if the state's intent was not to
facilitate a conpeting project.

2:58: 48 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI referred to Ilanguage that says the
treatment nust be offered "for the purpose of facilitating
construction.” He said there nmust be an intent to facilitate
construction of a conpeting natural gas pipeline project and a
party seeki ng danages woul d have to prove intent.

2:59:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether the |egislature can describe
or narrow the scope of its approval.

MR. BULLOCK responded that how a |egislature approaches the
consideration of a recommended licensee is within the discretion
of the legislature.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI said that his understanding is that the
| egi sl ature can "tal k about anything,” but if the license is not

approved within 60 days, then the bill fails and no license is
i ssued. He opined that at that point the executive branch may
decide to award the |license despite lack of |legislative
approval .

3:02:15 PM

CO- CHAIR JOHNSON asked whether the legislature can anend the
bill requesting issuance of a license for the gas pipeline
proj ect .

MR. BULLOCK replied that the legislature could anmend the bill
requesting issuance of the license, but that AGA is designed to
allow the legislature to approve or disapprove the recommended
| i censee. He remnded the conmmttee that the separation of
powers limtations may limt the legislature's ability to amend
the bill.

3:04:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked whet her the governor could amend
AG A to conformto a licensee she had approved.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -25- April 19, 2007



MR. BULLOCK replied that the governor can request a bill through
the House Rules Standing Commttee and the |egislature can do
what it wishes with it.
[HB 177 was held over. ]

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Resources Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 3:05:40
PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 26- April 19, 2007



